Town of Champlain Industrial Development Agency
Special Meeting - Minutes
August 22, 2006

The special meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. on August 22, 2006 at 729 Route
9, Plattsburgh, NY by Vice Chairperson Paul Gehrig.

Agency Members Present:
Robert Casey (arrived at 5:15), Richard Baker, Paul Gehrig, Kenneth Laplante, Jane
West, Rolla Parker, and J. Bruce Seguin

Agency Members Absent:
None

Town Council Members Present:
Jules Trahan, Larry Barcomb, Craig Hicks

Others Present:
A.F. Kurtz, M.J. Rogers, Esq., Peggy Ashline

A. Kurtz asked L. Barcomb (Town Supervisor) to introduce the two new members of the
Agency who had been appointed to fill vacant positions. R. Parker fills an at-large
position and B. Seguin an “outside” town slot. L. Barcomb introduced R. Parker and J.
B. Seguin.

A. Kurtz called the roll and noted that Chair R. Casey had been delayed. She noted
that the special meeting had been published in the legal notices of the August 18"
edition of the Plattsburgh Press Republican. A. Kurtz said that the purpose of the
meeting was to prepare for a possible IDA project in the upcoming months. A. Kurtz
introduced the staff and explained that George W. Cregg Jr, Esq. (not present) who was
appointed Agency Bond Counsel on September 20, 2005 would prepare the transaction
documents for the Agency. G. Cregg has been CCIDA’s bond counsel for the past 20
years. A. Kurtz introduced Mark J. Rogers, Esq., as TCIDA’s Agency Counsel. M.
Rogers’ firm has represented both CCIDA and TDC since their inceptions in 1971 and
1961, respectively. A. Kurtz asked M. Rogers to talk a little about himself. Mark said
he, personally, started representing TDC and CCIDA in 1995, after Clyde Lewis retired.
A. Kurtz introduced P. Ashline as the Recording Secretary and added that Victoria
Zinser Johnson was the TDC V.P. and Keith Matott, the Facilities Manager. Johnson
and Matott were not in attendance.



TCIDA Meeting Draft Minutes
August 22,2006
Page 2 of 5

Bills and Communications:

A Kurtz explained that the packets for the monthly meetings will be mailed to the
Agency members approximately one week prior to the regular meetings. She
suggested that the members should consider having regularly scheduled meetings. A.
Kurtz added that TDC's staff is working with the State Auditor’s Office to get the 2005
Annual Report and with Lucy Carroll at AFRC the long-time auditor of TCIDA. A. Kurtz
explained that part of the Management Agreement between TCIDA and TDC was to
repay some debt that the Champlain LDC/IDA had accrued in the past. Regarding the
interest on the debt, New York State is being asked to waive interest, if any on debt to
them.

A Kurtz asked M. Rogers to review the Management Agreement, a copy of which had
previously been sent to the members of the Agency. M. Rogers explained that the
TCIDA would basically function in the same manner as the CCIDA. M. Rogers directed
the members to Page 2 of the agreement, which explains the specific responsibilities.
TDC will provide clerical and legal support and be given the same responsibilities it has
to County-wide parks within Town of Champlain, but any projects located in Champlain
Industrial Park would likely be transacted through CCIDA. M. Rogers explained that the
Uniform Tax Exempt Policy (UTEP) was adopted by the CCIDA and has been in use by
the CCIDA since 1999. TCIDA adopted the same Uniform Tax Exempt Policy on
September 20, 2005. An Agency fee could be generated for projects. The money
generated would first be applied to Agency expenses and then to TCIDA's debt. The
fees would be split 50/50 until TCIDA’s debt as of 9/20/05 is paid in full. When the
TCIDA debt has been retired the fees would accrue to TDC. J. Bruce Seguin asked
why the Town would have to split the fee with TDC. M. Rogers explained because TDC
is the one developing the projects and providing the administrative services and there is
no on-going fee to TDC from the TCIDA. Fees are only generated by projects. C. Hicks
inquired as to the amount of the debt. A. Kurtz said according to the report 2 years ago,
approximately $253,000. M. Rogers explained that the TCIDA fee was formerly 1%.
The new Agency fee will be 72 of 1%, also in line with CCIDA.

The PILOT (Pilot in Lieu of Taxes) Policy would be consistent with that of CCIDA.
When a new company comes, the taxing jurisdiction will have already pre-agreed to the
UTEP. There would only be a need to negotiate with the company on tax abatements
and other incentives if a company wants a deviation from the UTEP. Every town village
and the city school strict in the County has already acquiesced to the UTEP, including
the Village of Champlain, the Village of Rouses Point and the Town of Champlain.
Under the UTEP a bigger project gets more tax abatement in the UTEP. In 1998 the
taxing jurisdictions did some focus groups to look at important things a community
would consider and crafted the UTEP around those important criteria. Then Village of
Champlain Mayor, Melissa McManus was a member of the UTEP steering committee.
She now works for the Village of Rouses Point. Most projects fall under Category 1 or 2



TCIDA Meeting Draft Minutes
August 22,2006
Page 3 of 5

provisions but a really large project would fall under Category 3 and, therefore, given
more points and a potentially a larger abatement. The only recent project that sought a
deviation were the wind parks.

A. Kurtz explained that there are two Town of Champlain sites within the NYS Empire
Zone. The Champlain Industrial Park and the Wyeth site are both located in the Clinton
County Empire Zone. The Empire Zone offers very powerful incentives. An
Owner/Operator of a business could pay full property taxes to the taxing jurisdictions,
then the state would refund the same for a period of up to 10 years. (There was one
instance where Champlain Plastics and the City of Plattsburgh wanted the same
project. R. Casey added that in this case they played one against another).

A. Kurtz explained that new 2006 State Legislation requires all IDAs to make significant
administrative changes. Some of these changes include looking at by-laws, etc. A
disclosure is required for all board members, an audit committee will need to be formed
and a website for posting minutes, launched resolutions, etc. Mary Ann Castine is in
the process of developing the website and should be finished by the end of September.
Our Special and Bond Counsel, George Cregg, Jr. is drafting some generic documents
that the Agency will be reviewing and approving in the future to address the new
legislative mandates. G. Cregg represents many other IDA’s in New York State. He will
address all issues that need to be addressed.

TDC’s focus is on bringing new projects to the community. Getting company’s back on
the full tax rolls is also important. There are still 8 or 9 TCIDA companies that need to
go back to the full tax rolls. A. Kurtz noted that she thinks World Warehouse and
Miromar are the only TCIDA projects not yet ready to return on the tax rolls. All other
projects, she believes, are ready to go on the tax rolls. A. Kurtz and M. Rogers
explained that there can be hurdles in re-conveying old projects due to lenders
changing names, company’s changing names, etc.

J. West asked if TCIDA handles refinancing. A. Kurtz noted that CCIDA has consented
to refinancing but this doesn’t usually result in a new PILOT. She anticipates similar
actions on the part of TCIDA. J. West noted that TCIDA had based refinance fees on
the costs estimated on building permits. M. Rogers said the minimum fee for a CCIDA
project is $5,000. TCIDA will convey the projects back to the Company and put them on
the tax rolls (Section 1) such as (Transborder, World Warehouse, Anachemia). A. Kurtz
said the staff will carefully go through the IDA projects, company by company. R.
Parker asked what happens if the companies don’t want property back. M. Rogers said
there is usually authority to make them accept the conveyance.

A. Kurtz asked members to share contact information if they have not done so for our
website. A. Kurtz asked if it was okay to use the town’s board room for the IDA’s
meetings. L. Barcomb said this was ok. Members agreed that the 1% Monday of each



TCIDA Meeting Draft Minutes
August 22,2006
Page 4 of 5

month at 5:00 p.m. would be a good time to meet. A. Kurtz noted that TDC tries to be
very careful with posting legal notices, cancellations, etc.

New Project:

A. Kurtz said the new project should be kept as confidential as possible. The company
has an interest in a manufacturing facility in Rouses Point. The State has offered
financing and included TCIDA as available for IDA financing in conjunction with the
Clinton County Empire Zone. The project size is potentially estimated at $65M. Since it
is in the Empire Zone the would be a Special PILOT (15 year program). A. Kurtz
explained the PILOT payments using the UTEP. In a Category 3, Years 1 — 10 in an
Empire Zone (PILOT) they would pay the full tax to the Town, School District, Village
and County and would be refunded the full taxes from the State. Under the Empire
Zone/IDA scenario, the assessment doesn’t matter to the company for 10 years
because they will get their money back. Years 11 — 15 taxes would be taxed at 75%,
Year 12 — 80%, Year 13 — 85%, Year 14 — 90%, Year 15 — 95% and Year 16 — 100%.
The new company is weighing the benefits such as:

* |IDA would waive the mortgage recording tax but they will have to pay the agency
fee;

Sales tax exemption for building materials, etc.;

Savings to them for state portion of sales taxes

IDA saves the property taxes in Years 11 - 15;

IDA PILOT will provide a default if a problem with Empire Zone program arises in
the future.

J. West asked how many jobs the company would provide. R. Parker asked about
wages. One of the new principals is from another state and has acted as an IDA
Executive Director. The State has pitched them a very good offer. L. Barcomb asked if
this was a start-up company. A. Kurtz said she was not at liberty to name the company
or provide any additional information. A. Kurtz explained that it is important for the
Agency and Town to understand how an Empire Zone/PILOT works. R. Casey asked if
in addition to Empire Zone benefits and the State rebate — does the Town get to keep
the PILOT payments. A. Kurtz said yes. Closing could be a 60 — 90 day turnaround.
R. Casey asked if this was comparable to our usual timeline. A. Kurtz said a little
longer. The company is still doing its due diligence. L. Barcomb asked what the Town
Board’s responsibilities to TCIDA were. A. Kurtz said there were none except for
providing a place for meetings and maybe as an involved Agency for SEQR. J. West
asked how long the PILOT taxes for any new facility would be in effect. A. Kurtz said
not more than 15 (except in the cases of a deviation that called for a longer term), then
back on tax rolls. C. Hicks asked if when there are any new projects would the
members find out, then tell the town board. A. Kurtz explained that the Town Board isn’t



TCIDA Meeting Draft Minutes
August 22,2006
Page 5 of 5

involved unless anything in the UTEP changes. J. West added, however, that if a new
building was built it would need town permits, code enforcement, and site plan approval,
etc. A. Kurtz noted that in the case of an existing building, no. A. Kurtz added that the
Town Supervisor will always get a copy of the staff reports. A. Kurtz said the one thing
she really did not know about was the Environmental Impact Statement for the site but
doesn’t foresee a problem but that, sometimes, when a company has been in place for
a long time, environmental issues may arise. A. Kurtz noted that once the TCIDA'’s debt
is paid off, perhaps by the fee for this potential project, the Montgomery Est. Industrial
Park could be much more viable and could be new developable space with the Town.

A.Kurtz said that the IDA members could report information to the Town Board. J.
Bruce Seguin could act as a liaison. A. Kurtz said the TCIDA applications forms are
now up-to-date. Draft by-laws would be sent to the members for their review and TDC'’s
TCIDA staff will soon start looking at the company’s that need to go back on the tax
rolls. A. Kurtz mentioned that TDC has tried to give TCIDA its own visual identity by
using the “Arial” font for all Agency documents and to differentiate it from CCIDA and
TDC. P. Gehrig asked if we needed to adopt a resolution to approve George W. Cregg,
Jr. and Mark J. Rogers, Esq. M. Rogers stated that this was contained in the
agreement and that they were approved by adopting the agreement on September 20,
2006, so no resolution was required.

R. Casey asked if the members are required to meet monthly. A. Kurtz said no, but
recommended meeting once a month so any new applications could be accepted. A.
Kurtz suggested the next meeting be in October. A. Kurtz will send a legal notice to
adopt a meeting schedule for the rest of this year.

K. Laplante made a motion to adopt a monthly meeting schedule for the 1% Monday of
every month at the Town'’s offices. J. West seconded the motion. It was unanimously
approved.

There being no further matters, J. West made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:06
p.m. R. Parker seconded the motion.

Robert Casey, Chairman



